
  

AGENDA 
STAYTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday, June 3, 2013 
Stayton Community Center 

400 W. Virginia Street 
Stayton, Oregon  97383 

 
5:30 p.m. Two Executive Sessions (E.G. Siegmund Room at the Stayton Public Library) pursuant to 

ORS 192.660.1(2)(h) to consult with counsel concerning the legal rights and duties of a 
public body with regard to current litigation or litigation likely to be filed. 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting (Community Center – North End) 

 
CALL TO ORDER   7:00 PM   Mayor Vigil 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
Request for Recognition:  If you wish to address the Council, please fill out a green “Request for 
Recognition” form.  Forms are on the table at the back of the room. 
Recommended time for presentation is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – PLEASE READ CAREFULLY 
Items not on the agenda but relevant to City business may be discussed at this meeting. Citizens are encouraged to 
attend all meetings of the City Council to insure that they stay informed. Agenda items may be moved forward if a 
Public Hearing is scheduled. 

 
a. Additions to the agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. May 6, 2013 City Council Meeting Minutes 
b. Senior Services Meal Site Agreement Renewal 
 
Purpose of the Consent Agenda: 
In order to make more efficient use of meeting time, resolutions, minutes, bills, and other items which are routine in 
nature and for which no debate is anticipated, shall be placed on the Consent Agenda.  Any item placed on the 
Consent Agenda may be removed at the request of any council member prior to the time a vote is taken.  All 
remaining items of the Consent Agenda are then disposed of in a single motion to adopt the Consent Agenda.  This 
motion is not debatable.  The Recorder to the Council will then poll the council members individually by a roll call 
vote.  If there are any dissenting votes, each item on the consent Agenda is then voted on individually by roll call 
vote.  Copies of the Council packets include more detailed staff reports, letters, resolutions, and other supporting 
materials.  A citizen wishing to review these materials may do so at Stayton City Hall, 362 N. Third Avenue, Stayton, 
or the Stayton Public Library, 515 N. First Avenue, Stayton. 
 
The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 1 of 4 
June 3, 2013 



  

hours prior to the meeting. If you require special accommodations, please contact Alissa Angelo, 
Deputy City Recorder at (503) 769-3425. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
City of Stayton Revenue Sharing 
a. Commencement of Public Hearing 
b. Staff Report – Christine Shaffer 
c. Questions from Council 
d. Proponents’ Testimony 
e. Opponents’ Testimony 
f. General Testimony 
g. Questions from Public 
h. Questions from Council 
i. Staff Summary 
j. Close of Hearing 
 
City of Stayton 2013—2014 Fiscal Year Budget 
a. Commencement of Public Hearing 
b. Staff Report – Christine Shaffer 
c. Questions from Council 
d. Proponents’ Testimony 
e. Opponents’ Testimony 
f. General Testimony 
g. Questions from Public 
h. Questions from Council 
i. Staff Summary 
j. Close of Hearing 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Resolution No. 897 and Resolution No. 898, Certifying Eligibility and   Action 
Electing to Receive State Revenue Sharing Funds 
a. Staff Report – Christine Shaffer 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
Resolution No. 899, Adopting the F.Y. 2013—2014 City Budget, Making   Action 
Appropriations and Levying Property Taxes for the Fiscal Year 
a. Staff Report – Christine Shaffer 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
Developer – City Construction Agreement with JNCW Family LLC   Action 
a. Staff Report – David Kinney 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
STAFF/COMMISSION REPORTS – None  
 
 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 2 of 4 
June 3, 2013 



  

 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Recommended time for presentations is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
 
 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR         
 
 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
a. Work Session to Discuss Interim and Permanent City Administrator 
b. Storm System Development Charge Ordinance 
a. Proclamation for “Summer of Reading” by Mayor Scott Vigil 
 
ADJOURN 

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 3 of 4 
June 3, 2013 



  

CALENDAR OF EVENTS 

JUNE 2013
Monday June 3 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday June 4 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday June 11 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Friday  June 14 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday June 17 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Wednesday June 19 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday June 24 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

JULY 2013
Monday July 1 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday July 2 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Thursday July 4 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF INDEPENDENCE DAY 
Tuesday July 9 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Friday  July 12 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday July 15 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Wednesday July 17 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday July 29 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

AUGUST 2013
Monday August 5 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday August 6 National Night Out 6:00 p.m. Various City Parks 

Wednesday August 7 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Friday August 9 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Tuesday August 13 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday August 19 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday August 21 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday August 26 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

 

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 4 of 4 
June 3, 2013 



 
 

  
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 5 
May 6, 2013 

STAYTON CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING MINUTES 

May 6, 2013 
 
CALL TO ORDER 7:00 p.m. Mayor Vigil 

 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
ROLL CALL 

Mayor Scott Vigil Councilor Jennifer Niegel 
Councilor Henry Porter Councilor Catherine Hemshorn 
Councilor Brian Quigley Councilor Emily Gooch 
 

STAFF 
Don Eubank, City Administrator 
Christine Shaffer, Finance Director 
Rich Sebens, Police Chief 
Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development, excused 
Louise Meyers, Library Director, excused 
David Kinney, Public Works Director 
David A. Rhoten, City Attorney, excused 
Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 

 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
a. Swearing in of new Reserve Police Officers, presented by Chief Rich Sebens: Chief 

Sebens swore in Alan Pinto, Brandon RatheLeGurche, and David Bevens as new Reserve 
Police Officers for the City of Stayton. 

 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
a. Additions to the Agenda: None.  
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.: None.  
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. April 15, 2013 City Council Meeting Minutes 

 
MOTION: From Councilor Gooch, seconded by Councilor Hemshorn, to adopt the 

Consent Agenda. Motion passed 5:0. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – None 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

  
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 5 
May 6, 2013 

NEW BUSINESS 
Pool Management Options and Recommendations 
a. Staff Report:  Mr. Eubank provided the Council with a brief background on the City’s 

relationship with the YMCA up to this date. He read an email response he sent out earlier 
today addressing concerns raised by citizens over the weekend regarding the proposed 
partnership with the YMCA.  

  
b. Council Deliberation: Councilor Quigley asked how much of local option levy funding goes 

to the YMCA to manage the personnel at the Pool. Local Option Levy funds will be used for 
the entire $65,000 of the YMCA’s operating cost of the Pool plus a one time membership 
buy-out of $3,750 to cover current active memberships. Over time, the YMCA will 
implement a new fee structure.  

 
Councilor Niegel asked if the promised repairs from the local option levy will still be 
completed. Mr. Eubank stated these repairs will be completed as planned. He informed the 
Council that staff had been approached by Best Heating to complete a retrofit to assist with 
humidity problem inside the Pool building. The cost for this is $44,000 and the Santiam 
Community Endowment has indicated they are willing to cover 100% of the costs of this 
project. 

 
Mayor Vigil asked about ownership of any new equipment purchased once the YMCA takes 
over operations. If at some point the YMCA and City sever ties, who will own the newly 
purchased equipment. New language will be added to the agreement to address this issue. 

 
Councilor Gooch asked if regular facility inspections are done at the Pool. Ms. Shaffer stated 
the Sr. Engineering Technician performs these inspections twice a year. The Council feels 
they should be done on a more regular basis. Language will be added to the agreement 
specifying inspections are done on a monthly basis.  

 
Santiam YMCA Director Lisa Eckis spoke about their intention to bring in someone who has 
the expertise to oversee the Pool facility. In the past, her position as Director was a one 
person show that ran both the local YMCA programs as well as the Pool operations. Their 
plan is to bring in an individual who has expertise in running a pool facility.  

 
Paul Manning, the CEO of the Family YMCA of Marion and Polk County spoke about his 
background with the YMCA and the plans to make the transition as smooth as possible. He 
spoke about possible improvements to the schedule and changes to programs offered. While 
final fees haven’t been determined at this time, citizens will have the opportunity to purchase 
a membership to the Santiam Family YMCA which in turn also gives them access to the 
Salem facilities. Any memberships purchased through the Santiam Family YMCA facility 
stays within the local community. At this time, it’s unclear if a membership for only the pool 
will be offered or not. However, all current memberships and punch cards sold through the 
Pool will be honored through their expiration.  
 
Recruitment of an Aquatics Director will be done through a national YMCA recruitment 
website. They are hoping to find someone who is YMCA certified. While not opposed to 
hiring local, it can take up to a year for someone to be fully trained and YMCA certified. Mr. 
Manning spoke about the skills they look for when hiring an Aquatics Director.   

 



 
 

  
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 5 
May 6, 2013 

In regard to maintenance issues the YMCA has no intention to do anything major but would 
like to see a fast turnaround on minor repairs. They have their own facility maintenance 
employees who may be available more quickly to perform quick repairs, rather than waiting 
on approval from the City.  

 
Councilor Gooch is excited to see the Pool grow, but mentioned the lack of current 
marketing. She asked how the facility will be marketed by the YMCA. Marketing will be 
done from a grass roots approach, including reaching out to the local newspaper, schools, and 
other partnerships in the community. There is also an opportunity to cross-promote with 
other sports being offered through the YMCA.  
 
Councilor Quigley asked if Mr. Manning was aware of any similar situations elsewhere that 
didn’t work out. Mr. Manning stated while the YMCA is still working with the City of 
Silverton to operate their pool facility, the contract is very stringent. In order to repair even 
simple items, it must be approved by the City Council. 

 
Staff noted it is the intention of the YMCA to also take over the operation of the yearly 
Stayton Sprint Triathlon. Proceeds from the event will be divided in half, with 50% going to 
the City’s trust for the Pool and 50% staying with the YMCA.  

 
The Council discussed the notification process and responsibility for any maintenance and 
modifications made at the Facility. 

 
Finally, it was requested that the future Aquatics Director attend Council meetings every 
couple of months to provide updates on what is happening at the Pool.  

 
c. Council Decision: 
 

MOTION: From Councilor Gooch, seconded by Councilor Hemshorn, to direct the City 
Administrator to sign the two-year Pool Operation Agreement with the YMCA 
as modified.  

 
Discussion
 
Councilor Porter asked if only the Aquatics Director would update the Council or if Ms. 
Eckis would attend as well. Ms. Eckis stated if it’s reporting on activities and programs at the 
Pool, it would be the Aquatics Director. If it involved financial information, then she would 
attend.  
 
Councilor Quigley asked what alternative is there to signing this agreement with the YMCA. 
Mr. Eubank stated staff would recruit for a new Pool Manager.  
 
Rob Bartell of the Friends of the Pool spoke in favor of partnership with the YMCA, adding 
he’d like to see more visible directional signs placed leading patrons to the Pool.  
 
UPON ROLL CALL VOTE, THE MOTION PASSED 5:0.  

 
 



 
 

  
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 5 
May 6, 2013 

STAFF / COMMISSION REPORTS 
Police Department – Chief Rich Sebens 
a. Police Advisory Board Training: Chief Sebens informed the Council that the Advisory 

Board will be holding a meeting on May 28th which will include training.  
 
b. Drug Take-Back Event: The recent Drug Take-Back Event held in Stayton went very well. 

In the near future, a permanent drop-box will be installed for people wanting to properly 
dispose of medications at any time. Councilor Quigley recommended the permanent drop 
box be inside of a building. Chief Sebens stated it is a requirement that they be inside a 
building and secured.  
 

Public Works Director’s Report – David Kinney 
a. Stayton Municipal Code Title 13, Utility Deposit Updates: Mr. Kinney asked the Council 

to review the proposed changes included in their Council packet. Any questions can be 
directed to him via email.  
 

b. Recent Bid Opening Update:  Mr. Kinney briefly reviewed the recent bid openings 
included in his public works update. 

 
Councilor Gooch asked if any park signs had been ordered. Mr. Kinney stated they hadn’t 
been, as they are pending review by the Parks and Recreation Board at their meeting on 
Tuesday evening.  

 
Councilor Hemshorn asked if the City had received any further feedback regarding the 
downtown area tree removal. Mr. Kinney is aware of some comments made online. He stated 
the trees originally planted grew faster than staff had originally anticipated and they are 
starting to lift and crack the sidewalks. While they are being removed, replanting is planned 
for this fall.  

 
Mayor Vigil asked if the there are plans to replace the signage stolen by vandals along the 5k 
route done by the Boy Scouts. Mr. Kinney stated this is something the Parks and Recreation 
Board will discuss.  

 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC – None 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Mr. Eubank provided a brief reminder that on Friday, May 10 at 7:30 a.m. the Community 
Leaders meeting will be held at the Covered Bridge Café.  
  
 
BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR 
Mayor Vigil stated he would like to hold a work session in late May or early June to discuss the 
recruitment of a new City Administrator.  
 
The Stayton / Sublimity Clean-Up Day will be held Saturday, May 11 at 9:30 a.m. The initial 
meet-up will be at the Stayton Community Center.  
 



 
 

  
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 5 
May 6, 2013 

BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL – None  
 
ADJOURN 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:22 p.m. 
 
APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 3RD DAY OF JUNE 2013, BY A 
____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL.  
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

Date:    By:  
A. Scott Vigil, Mayor 

 
Date:    Attest:  

 Don Eubank, City Administrator 
       
Date:    Transcribed by:  
 Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 



 
 M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

TO:  Mayor Scott Vigil and Stayton City Councilors 
 
FROM: Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
 
DATE: May 20, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: Consent Agenda: Senior Services Meal Site Agreement Renewal 
  
 
ISSUE:  One year extension of the Facility Use Agreement with Northwest Senior & Disability 
Services (NWSDS) for use of the Stayton Community Center as a senior meal site. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Authorize the City Administrator to execute the Facility Use 
Agreement for 2013-2014. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: The City of Stayton has enjoyed a good working 
relationship with NWSDS for many years.  The agency uses the kitchen facilities and south side of 
the Community Center on a weekly basis as a senior meal site serving the greater Stayton area. The 
2010 renewal included a 19% increase in the base rent, from $420.00 to $500.00 a month plus the 
annual locker rent of $250.00. All terms of the previous agreement remain unchanged for the coming 
year. 
  
FACTS AND FINDINGS:  NWSDS has agreed to the terms of the renewal. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Annual rent to the General fund of $6,250. 
 
OPTIONS:  Approve, deny or direct modification of the proposed Use Agreement 
 
MOTION(S):  N/A included as a Consent Agenda item 



 

USE AGREEMENT 
STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER FACILITY 

 
THIS USE AGREEMENT is made by and between the City of Stayton, CITY, and the NorthWest Senior & 
Disability Services, USER. 
 
WHEREAS, the primary use of the Stayton Community Center is as a public use and meeting area for the 
City of Stayton and any persons or groups who rent the facility from the CITY; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the NorthWest Senior & Disability Services desires to rent certain portions of the Center, and 
the CITY agrees to such use and rental as follows: 
 

WITNESSETH 
 
THAT IN CONSIDERATION of the payment of user fees and the USER's covenants herein contained, the 
CITY will allow USER to use the following described premises: 
 

The Stayton Community Center south meeting room, including kitchen facilities and one 
(1) storage locker, of the Stayton Community Center located at 400 West Virginia Street, 
Stayton, Oregon. 

 
  1. USER shall pay a user fee for the rental of the above described premises in the amount 

of five hundred dollars ($500.00) per month commencing July 1, 2013. All rental fees 
shall be in advance prior to the first of the month.   

 
A non-refundable, one-time per year storage locker rental fee of $250.00 for one (1) 
locker used shall be paid prior to July 1, 2013 for use through June 30, 2014 unless this 
Agreement is earlier terminated. 

 
 2. USER agrees to abide by the general rules and regulations governing the use of the 

Stayton Community Center, attached herein as Exhibit A.  In any case where the general 
rules and regulations conflict with the terms of this Agreement, the terms of this 
Agreement shall prevail. 

 
 3. Other than with prior written consent of CITY, the premises shall be used as a senior 

nutrition site for the NorthWest Senior & Disability Services.  USER is entitled to use of 
the designated portion of the Center on weekdays, Monday through Friday, between the 
hours of 9:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. 

 
 4. CITY reserves the right to rent or use the foyer and/or north end of the facility to others at 

any time USER is renting the facility.    
 

 5. In addition, on not more than four weekdays during the course of this Agreement, CITY 
reserves the right to schedule events that may involve the use of the entire premises of 
the Stayton Community Center.  In order to allow USER to make suitable alternative 
arrangements, CITY shall notify USER of such events no less than 21 calendar days in 
advance of the date scheduled. 

 
 6. USER agrees to carry general liability insurance on the premises with an aggregate limit 

of at least $1,000,000.00, meeting the statutory and city code requirements.  USER 
further agrees to designate the City of Stayton as an additional named insured on the 
policy.  USER shall provide CITY with a certificate evidencing said insurance coverage 
prior to occupancy. 

 

 
NORTHWEST SENIOR & DISABILITY SERVICES  Page 1 of 4 
COMMUNITY CENTER USE AGREEMENT 
JULY 1, 2013 - JUNE 30, 2014 



 

 7. USER shall protect, indemnify, defend and hold CITY harmless from any claim, loss, 
liability, or damage to persons or property and all costs and fees in the defense arising 
out of or related to any activity on the premises and any person who comes on the 
premises at the invitation or with the acquiescence of USER.  USER's duty to indemnify 
shall not apply to nor prevent any claim by USER against CITY for injury or damage to 
USER or USER's property for which CITY may be liable. 

 
 8. USER is responsible for telephone service for the NorthWest Senior & Disability 

Services.  CITY grants USER the right to install a telephone line and telephone jack to 
the kitchen for the operation of the NorthWest Senior & Disability Services nutrition site, 
at USER's sole expense. 

 
 9. USER shall be responsible for: 

 
 a. Daily supervision and staffing of the nutrition site. 

 
b.   Daily setup and putting away of tables and chairs for the nutrition program. 

 
c.   Providing dishwashing soap, dishwasher detergent, cleaners, and other cleaning 

supplies in order to maintain the kitchen area and clean up tables used for meals.  
 

 d. Daily cleanup of the kitchen, stoves, refrigerator, counters, tables and chairs.   
 

e.   Daily sweeping of the dining area and kitchen. 
 

f. Ownership and maintenance of the existing commercial dishwasher, agreeing 
that the equipment will be used by other renters of the facility. 

 
 g. Daily checking of the bathroom areas including the restocking of toilet paper and 

paper towels. 
 

h. Daily checking of all exit doors to ensure the facility is secure. 
 

i. Provision of any special equipment or materials needed by the USER for conduct 
of the nutrition program.    

 
   10. USER shall be responsible for: 
 

a. Any repairs to the premises necessitated by the negligence of USER, its agents, 
employees, and invitees, except as provided in paragraph 6 of this Agreement; 

 
b. Any repairs to any of CITY's personal property and for any damage to the 

personal property which occurred during times USER is renting the facility. 
 

c. Except with respect to activities for which CITY is responsible, USER shall pay 
as due all claims for work done on or for services rendered to or material 
furnished to the premises and shall keep the premises free from any and all liens 
of any kind whatsoever relating to USER's use and occupancy of the premises. 

 
11. CITY shall be responsible for: 

 
a. All utilities and general maintenance of the facility. 

 
 b. Providing utility paper supplies for use in the kitchen and bathrooms consisting of 

a reasonable quantity of toilet paper and paper towels. 
 

 
NORTHWEST SENIOR & DISABILITY SERVICES  Page 2 of 4 
COMMUNITY CENTER USE AGREEMENT 
JULY 1, 2013 - JUNE 30, 2014 



 

12. USER agrees to maintain the premises in a clean and sanitary condition at all times. 
USER's on-going maintenance of the facility in a clean and sanitary condition is an 
essence of this Agreement and is the primary reason CITY has allowed USER to pay a 
reduced fee for the use of the facility.  CITY will carefully monitor USER's ability to 
maintain the premises in a clean and sanitary condition; and, if CITY finds USER has not 
maintained the premises in a satisfactory manner, such shall be cause for termination of 
this Agreement. 

   
13. USER shall make no improvements or alterations to the premises of any kind without first 

obtaining CITY's written consent.  All improvements or alterations performed on the 
premises by either CITY or USER shall be the property of CITY when installed unless 
agreed otherwise in writing at the time of the installation of the improvement or alteration.  

 
14. USER shall maintain a record of hours of operation of the Stayton nutrition site, 

attendance, volunteer hours worked, on-site meals served, off-site meals served and 
special programs offered to seniors in conjunction with the nutrition programs.  USER 
shall present a brief written report on the NorthWest Senior & Disability Services nutrition 
program, operations and costs to CITY upon request. 

 
15. The term of this Use Agreement shall be for one (1) year commencing July 1, 2013 and 

terminating at 11:59 p.m. on June 30, 2014. This Agreement will be reviewed by March 
30, 2014 and may be extended upon written agreement of both parties. 

 
16. This Agreement may be terminated by either party by giving the other party thirty (30) 

days' written notice.   
 

17. The remedies of CITY and USER for breach of this Agreement shall be as set forth in 
ORS 105.105 through ORS 105.155 and shall specifically include the remedies set forth 
as follows: ON 24 HOURS’ NOTICE: CITY may, after 24-hours’ written notice specifying 
the cause, immediately terminate this Agreement if: 1) USER or someone in USER’s  
control seriously threatens immediately to inflict personal injury, or inflicts any substantial 
personal injury, upon CITY or other users; 2) USER or someone in USER's control 
intentionally inflicts any substantial damage to the premises; or 3) USER or someone in 
USER's control commits any act which is outrageous in the extreme. 

 
18. In the event of termination of this Agreement under the terms hereof or otherwise, CITY 

may take possession in the manner provided in ORS 105.105 through 105.555 or in any 
other manner, including voluntary surrender by USER. 

 
19. In the event of suit or action to enforce the rights of the CITY or the USER hereunder, the 

court may allow reasonable attorney fees to the prevailing party of said suit or appeal 
thereon. 

 
20. It is understood that no modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless that 

modification appears in writing and has been signed by the USER's and by CITY's 
representatives who have been authorized to do so at a regularly scheduled meeting of 
the Stayton City Council.  

  
21. USER shall refrain from storing on or discharging from or onto the premises any 

hazardous wastes or toxic substances as defined in 42 USC 9601-9657. 
 

22. Waiver by either party of strict performance of any provision of this Agreement shall not 
be a waiver of or prejudice the party's right to require strict performance of the same 
provision in the future or of any other provision. 

 

 
NORTHWEST SENIOR & DISABILITY SERVICES  Page 3 of 4 
COMMUNITY CENTER USE AGREEMENT 
JULY 1, 2013 - JUNE 30, 2014 



 

23. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties, their 
respective successors, and assigns.   

 
24. This Agreement is the entire, final, and complete agreement of the parties pertaining to 

the agreement and supersedes and replaces all written and oral agreements heretofore 
made or existing by and between the parties or their representatives relating the property. 

 
25. The Stayton City Administrator, or his designate, is hereby authorized to administer this 

Agreement for CITY.   
 

26. The Nutrition Services Manager, or his designate, is hereby authorized to administer this 
Agreement for USER. 

  
This Agreement has been approved by the City of Stayton at a regularly scheduled meeting of the 
Stayton City Council on the    day of      2013. 
 
 CITY OF STAYTON 
 
 
Date:     By:         
      DON EUBANK, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
Date:      By:         
      DAVID A. RHOTEN, City Attorney 
 
      NORTHWEST SENIOR & DISABILITY SERVICES 
 
 
Date:     By:         
      RODNEY SCHROEDER, Executive Director (Operations) 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
Date:     By:         
      BRUCE A. ZAGAR, Legal Counsel 

 
NORTHWEST SENIOR & DISABILITY SERVICES  Page 4 of 4 
COMMUNITY CENTER USE AGREEMENT 
JULY 1, 2013 - JUNE 30, 2014 



 
 M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

TO:  Mayor Scott Vigil and Stayton City Councilors 
 
FROM: Christine Shaffer, Finance Director 
 
DATE: June 3, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing - State Revenue Sharing Funds 

  
 
Each year, the State of Oregon releases specific funds (ORS 221.770) to municipalities 
throughout the state, based per-capita on respective city populations.  To qualify for 
receiving these funds, the City must certify that services provided by the City include 
public safety and other specified activities.  A resolution being considered as a separate 
item on this agenda, declaring the City’s eligibility to receive State Revenue Sharing 
funds, represents that certification. 
 
In addition, two public hearings must be held to hear citizens’ opinions as to the use of 
these monies.  The first public hearing was held in connection with the Budget Committee 
process on May 7, 2013, to receive citizen input on possible uses of the funds. 
 
This is the second required public hearing, before the City Council to receive citizen input 
on proposed uses of State Revenue Sharing funds.  It is estimated that the City will 
receive approximately $64,000 from this source during Fiscal Year 2013-2014.  The 
proposed use of the funds, as approved by the Budget Committee, is to fund City services. 
 



 
 
 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

 
TO:  Mayor Scott Vigil and Stayton City Councilors 
 
FROM: Christine Shaffer, Finance Director 
   
DATE: June 03, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing:  City of Stayton 2013-2014 Budget 
 
 
Oregon Local Budget Law requires that a public hearing be held by the governing body prior to 
its adoption of a Budget for the ensuing fiscal year.  The purpose of this hearing is to receive 
public input and testimony concerning the Budget approved by the City of Stayton Budget 
Committee.   
 
Noteworthy points in connection with the budget include: 
 

 The budget demonstrates progress toward support of the City Council’s goals for 2013-
2014. 

 Total budget, as approved, for all funds is $17,172403.  Property taxes reflected in the 
approved budget include the City’s permanent tax rate of $3.328 and the first year of the 
four year Local Option Tax at the rate of $0.60 per $1,000.  This measure was passed by 
Stayton voters on May 15, 2012, for partial support of library, swimming pool, and/or 
capital projects.    

 The approved budget supports a total of approximately 42.5 Full Time Equivalent (FTE) 
positions as follows:  Administration/Finance/Planning – 5; Police – 13.5; Library – 6.2; 
Public Works/Parks/Recreation (including part time seasonal employees) – 17.5;  

 All laws concerning State Revenue Sharing funds, budget publication and Oregon Local 
Budget Law have been complied with. 

 
No Council action is required at the conclusion of this public hearing.  However, the final 
adoption of the 2013-2014 Budget is a subsequent action item on the agenda for this meeting and 
testimony received as a result of this hearing should be considered and/or taken into account at 
that time. 



 
 M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

TO:  Mayor Scott Vigil and Stayton City Councilors 
 
FROM: Christine Shaffer, Finance Director 
 
DATE: June 3, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 897 and Resolution No. 898, Certifying Eligibility and 

Electing to Receive State Revenue Sharing Funds  
  

 
ISSUE: 
Compliance with Oregon Revised Statutes in order to receive State Shared Revenues. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that Council approve Resolution No. 897, certifying the City’s eligibility to 
receive state-shared revenues and Resolution No. 898, electing to receive these funds. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
ORS 221.760 provides that cities located within a county having more than 100,000 inhabitants 
must provide four or more of the following municipal services to be eligible to receive state-
shared revenues: 

• Police protection 
• Fire protection 
• Street construction, maintenance, and lighting 
• Sanitary sewers 
• Storm sewers 
• Planning, zoning, and subdivision control 
• One or more utility services 

 
Resolution No. 897 certifies the City’s eligibility to receive state-shared revenues. 
 
ORS 221.770 requires cities to annually pass a resolution requesting state revenue sharing 
money.  Resolution No. 898 declares the City’s election to receive state revenues.  Along with 
this resolution, we also certify, on a state provided form, attested to by the Deputy City 
Recorder, the two required public hearings were held.  
 
 



FACTS AND FINDINGS: 
On May 7, 2013, a public hearing was held at the budget committee meeting to receive citizen 
input on possible uses of revenue sharing funds.  Earlier this evening, a public hearing was held 
to receive citizen input on proposed uses of State Revenue Sharing funds.  Oregon Revised 
Statutes (ORS) further require that the Council pass two separate resolutions in order to receive 
these funds. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The City will realize revenue of $64,000 in the General Fund in Fiscal Year 2013 - 2014.   
 
GOALS: 
N/A 
 
OPTIONS: 
1.  Approve the attached Resolutions to comply with State Revenue Sharing Law and be eligible 

to receive these funds 
2. Not approve the attached Resolutions to comply with State Revenue Sharing Law and be 

ineligible to receive these funds 
 
MOTION(S): 
For Option 1:  Offer a motion to approve Resolution No. 897, Certifying the City of Stayton’s 

Eligibility to Receive State-Shared Revenues by Providing the Necessary 
Municipal Services. 

 
   Offer a motion to approve Resolution No. 898, Declaring the City’s Election to 

Receive State Revenues. 
 
For Option 2:  No motion necessary. 



 
Resolution No. 897         Page 1of 1 
Declaring Eligibility to Receive Revenue Sharing Funds 

RESOLUTION No. 897  
 

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE CITY OF STAYTON’S ELIGIBILITY TO RECEIVE 
STATE-SHARED REVENUES BY PROVIDING THE NECESSARY MUNICIPAL 
SERVICES. 
 
 WHEREAS, ORS 221.760, Section 1., provides that the officer responsible for disbursing 
funds to cities under ORS 323.455, 366.785 to 366.820, and 471.805 shall, in the case of a city located 
within a county having more than 100,000 inhabitants according to the most recent federal decennial 
census, disburse such funds only if the city provides four or more of the following services: 
 

1. Police protection 
2. Fire protection 
3. Street construction, maintenance, and lighting 
4. Sanitary sewers 
5. Storm sewers 
6. Planning, zoning, and subdivision control 
7. One or more utility services 

 
 WHEREAS, City officials recognize the desirability of assisting the state office responsible for 
determining the eligibility of cities to receive such funds in accordance with ORS 221.760. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Stayton City Council that the City of Stayton hereby 
certifies that it provides the following municipal services enumerated in Section 1, ORS 221.760: 
 

1. Police protection 
2. Street construction, maintenance, and lighting 
3. Sanitary sewers 
4. Storm sewers 
5. Planning, zoning, and subdivision control 
6. Water utility service 

 
 
Approved by the Stayton City Council this 3rd day of June, 2013. 
 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

 
Date:                                         By:  ____________________________________________                             
     A. Scott Vigil, Mayor 
 
 
Date:                                         ATTEST:  _______________________________________                            
     Don Eubank, City Administrator 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
__________________________ 
David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 



 
RESOLUTION No. 898         Page 1of 1 
Declaring the City’s Election to Receive State Shared Revenues 
 

RESOLUTION No. 898  
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING THE CITY’S ELECTION TO RECEIVE STATE 
REVENUES. 
 
 WHEREAS, revenue sharing statutes require that a city may not be included in 
apportionments or receive distributions of State Revenue Sharing unless it elects to receive 
distributions by enactment of an ordinance or resolution expressing that election; 
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing before the Budget Committee was held on the 7th day of 
May, 2013 and a public hearing before the City Council was held on the 3rd  day of June, 2013, 
giving the citizens an opportunity to comment on use of State Revenue Sharing. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Stayton City Council that, pursuant to ORS 
221.770, the City of Stayton hereby elects to receive state revenues for the 2013-2014 fiscal year. 
 
 
Approved by the Stayton City Council this 3rd day of June, 2013. 
 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 
 
 
Date:                                         By:  ____________________________________________                         
     A. Scott Vigil, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Date:                                         ATTEST:   ______________________________________                         
     Don Eubank, City Administrator 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
__________________________ 
David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 
 



 
 
 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

 
TO:  Scott Vigil and Stayton City Councilors 
 
FROM: Christine Shaffer, Finance Director 
 
DATE: June 03, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 899 Adopting the F.Y. 2013-2014 City Budget, Making 

Appropriations and Levying Property Taxes for the Fiscal Year 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Resolution No. 899 (Adopting the Budget, Making Appropriations and Levying Property Taxes 
for Fiscal Year 2013-2014). 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 899 as presented or as may be amended.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
On May 09, 2013, the City of Stayton Budget Committee approved a City Budget for Fiscal Year 
2012-2013, including the levying of the City’s established permanent tax rate of $3.328/$1,000 
of assessed value and a local option property tax at the rate of $0.60/$1,000 as approved by 
Stayton voters on May 15, 2012. 
 
Scheduled at the beginning of this meeting’s agenda was a public hearing before the governing 
body, the Stayton City Council, as required by Oregon Budget Law, to receive public input 
regarding the Budget as approved by the Budget Committee. 
 
Local Budget Law allows the governing body to make changes to the Approved Budget during 
adoption, as long as the estimated appropriations in a fund are not increased over the amount 
approved by the Budget Committee by more than $5,000 or 10 percent of the appropriation, 
whichever is greater. 
 
FACTS AND FINDINGS: 

 
Any changes deemed appropriate as a result of public testimony received at the Public Hearing 
on the 2013-2014 City Budget, held earlier this evening, should also be made at this time. 
 

 



While the Budget Committee approves the budget by line item as well as by totals, adoption of 
the Budget by the City Council is done by category totals, although any final line item changes 
are reflected in those totals. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Total City Budget, is $17,172,403, General Fund Budget is $3,663,265. 
 

GOALS: 
The City Budget, in total, relates to all established City Council goals and the ability to move 
toward achieving those goals. 
 
OPTIONS: 
1.  Adopt the 2013-2014 Budget as presented. 
 
2. Adopt the 2013-2014 Budget with further specific amendments. 
 
MOTION(S): 
Offer a motion to approve Resolution No. 899, Adopting the 2013-2014 Budget, Making 
Appropriations for the 2013-2014 Fiscal Year and Levying Taxes for the Fiscal Year (either as 
presented or as further specifically amended). 
. 
 



 

 
Resolution No. 899         Page 1 of 8 
Adopting 2013-2014 Budget, Making Appropriations and Levying Taxes 

RESOLUTION NO. 899 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2012-2013 BUDGET, MAKING APPROPRIATIONS 
FOR THE 2013-2014 FISCAL YEAR, AND LEVYING TAXES FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR. 
 

ADOPTING THE BUDGET 
 

 BE IT RESOLVED that the Stayton City Council adopts the budget for fiscal year 2013-
2014 now on file at Stayton City Hall. 
 

MAKING APPROPRIATIONS 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED that the amounts budgeted for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2013, 
for the purposes shown below, are hereby appropriated: 
 
 
 GENERAL FUND 
 
Personal Services .........................................................................................................................  $2,077,806  
   
Materials and Services ....................................................................................................................  $885,157  
 
Capital Outlay ...................................................................................................................................  $36,000  
 
Transfer ..........................................................................................................................................   $235,000  
 
Operating Contingency ...................................................................................................................  $244,302  
 
Unappropriated Balance..................................................................................................................  $185,000  
 

Fund Total:  $3,663,265 
 
     

Administration ...................................................................................................................  $429,356  
Planning Department .........................................................................................................  $157,771  
Non-Departmental..............................................................................................................  $833,302  
Police Department...........................................................................................................  $1,915,047  
Street Lighting ...................................................................................................................  $116,685  
Park Maintenance ..............................................................................................................  $152,706  
Community Center...............................................................................................................  $58,398  
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
Resolution No. 899         Page 2 of 8 
Adopting 2013-2014 Budget, Making Appropriations and Levying Taxes 

 
PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION 

 
Personal Services ............................................................................................................................  $327,758  
 
Materials and Services ....................................................................................................................  $102,150  
 
Contingency ......................................................................................................................................  $20,192  
 

Fund Total: $450,100 
 
 
 
 

LIBRARY FUND 
 
Personal Services…………………………………………………………………………………. $348,650 
 
Materials and Services…………………………………………………………………………..…. $65,939 
 
Capital Outlay…………………………………………………………………………………...…. $51,600 
 
Transfers …………………………………………………………………………………...……  $2,000 
 
Contingency…………………………………………………………………………………...…… $21,633 
 

 
Fund Total: $489,822 

 
 
 

 
WATER FUND 

 
Personal Services ............................................................................................................................  $434,534  
 
Materials and Services ....................................................................................................................  $483,590  
 
Capital Outlay .................................................................................................................................  $240,000  
 
Debt Service....................................................................................................................................  $402,919  
 
Transfers .........................................................................................................................................  $391,257  
 
Operating Contingency .................................................................................................................... $291,182  
 
Unappropriated Balance................................................................................................................... $235,018 
 Fund Total: $2,478,500 



 

 
Resolution No. 899         Page 3 of 8 
Adopting 2013-2014 Budget, Making Appropriations and Levying Taxes 

 
 

SEWER FUND 
 
Personal Services ............................................................................................................................  $671,688  
 
Materials and Services .................................................................................................................  $1,167,774  
 
Capital Outlay .................................................................................................................................  $330,000  
 
Debt Service....................................................................................................................................  $830,097  
 
Transfers .........................................................................................................................................  $460,246  
 
Reserves and Special Payments ....................................................................................................... $431,447 
 
Operating Contingency ................................................................................................................. $1,250,000  
 
Unappropriated Balance..................................................................................................................... $46,928 
 
 Fund Total:  $5,188,180 
 
 
 
 
 STREET FUND 
 
Personal Services ..............................................................................................................................  $84,096  
 
Materials and Services ....................................................................................................................  $262,030  
 
Capital Outlay .................................................................................................................................  $190,000  
 
Transfers .........................................................................................................................................  $122,937  
 
Operating Contingency ...................................................................................................................... $16,656 
 
Unappropriated Balance.............................................................................................................................. $0 
 
 Fund Total: $675,719 
 
 
 
 

FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT & MAINTENANCE FUND 
 

Materials and Services ..................................................................................................................... $110,000 
    



 

 
Resolution No. 899         Page 4 of 8 
Adopting 2013-2014 Budget, Making Appropriations and Levying Taxes 

Capital Outlay .................................................................................................................................  $260,000  
 
Contingency ..................................................................................................................................... $140,000 
 
Unappropriated Balance................................................................................................................... $131,855 
 
 Fund Total: $641,855 
  
 
 
 VEHICLE REPLACEMENT FUND 
 
Materials and Services ........................................................................................................................  $5,000 
 
Capital Outlay .................................................................................................................................. $425,000  
 
Contingency ..................................................................................................................................... $600,000 
 
Unappropriated Balance................................................................................................................... $142,401 
 
 Fund Total: $1,172,401 
 
 
 
 SUBLIMITY/RD RESERVE 
 
Unappropriated Balance..................................................................................................................... $96,000  
 
 Fund Total: $96,000 
 
 
  

 
 

GRANT FUND 
 

Personal Services ..............................................................................................................................  $97,000  
 
Materials and Services ....................................................................................................................  $254,500  
 
Capital Outlay ..................................................................................................................................   $70,500  
 
Unappropriated .................................................................................................................................  $12,100  
 
 Fund Total: $434,100 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
Resolution No. 899         Page 5 of 8 
Adopting 2013-2014 Budget, Making Appropriations and Levying Taxes 

TRUST AND AGENCY FUND 
 
Other Expenditures .......................................................................................................................... $350,000 
 
Unappropriated ................................................................................................................................ $150,000 
 
 Fund Total:  $500,000  
 
 
 
 

SWIMMING POOL FUND 
 
Materials and Services ....................................................................................................................  $159,690  
 
Capital Outlay ..................................................................................................................................   $73,367  
 
Operating Contingency ........................................................................................................................ $5,243 
 

Fund Total: $238,300 
 
 
 

 
 WATER SDC FUND 
 
Materials and Services ......................................................................................................................  $67,000 
 
Capital Outlay ...................................................................................................................................  $60,000 
 
 Transfers ...............................................................................................................................................  $870  
 
Unappropriated Balance..................................................................................................................... $28,990 
 
 Fund Total: $156,860 
 
 
 
 SEWER SDC FUND 
 
Materials and Services ..................................................................................................................... $290,000 
 
Capital Outlay .................................................................................................................................  $100,000  
 
Transfers .........................................................................................................................................  ... $1,915  
 
Unappropriated Balance..................................................................................................................... $12,809 
    
 Fund Total: $404,724 
 



 

 
Resolution No. 899         Page 6 of 8 
Adopting 2013-2014 Budget, Making Appropriations and Levying Taxes 

 
 

STREET SDC FUND 
 
Materials and Services ....................................................................................................................  $106,000  
 
Capital Outlay .................................................................................................................................  $150,000  
 
Transfers .............................................................................................................................................  $2,120  
 
Unappropriated .................................................................................................................................. $31,005  
 
 Fund Total: $289,125 
 
 
 

STORM SDC FUND 
 
Materials and Services ......................................................................................................................  $10,000  
 
Capital Outlay ............................................................................................................................................  $0  
 
Transfers ....................................................................................................................................................  $0  
 
Unappropriated .................................................................................................................................. $14,000  
 
 Fund Total: $24,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 PARK SDC FUND 
 
Materials and Services ........................................................................................................................  $3,500  
 
Capital Outlay ...................................................................................................................................  $30,000  
 
Transfers ...........................................................................................................................................  $30,400  
 
Unappropriated .................................................................................................................................... $4,660  
 
 Fund Total: $68,500 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
Resolution No. 899         Page 7 of 8 
Adopting 2013-2014 Budget, Making Appropriations and Levying Taxes 

SEWER CONSTRUCTION FUND 
 
Capital Outlay ...................................................................................................................................  $72,500 
  

Fund Total: $72,500 
 
 

 
PARKS CONSTRUCTION FUND 

 
Materials and Services ......................................................................................................................  $14,700  
 
Capital Outlay .................................................................................................................................  $100,300 
  
Contingencies....................................................................................................................................  $13,390  
 

Fund Total: $128,390 
 
 
 

 
 
   Total Appropriations      $ 15,650,190 
 

Total Unappropriated and Reserve Balances   $1,522,213 
 
             

TOTAL BUDGET $17,172,403  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
Resolution No. 899         Page 8 of 8 
Adopting 2013-2014 Budget, Making Appropriations and Levying Taxes 

 
 
 

CATEGORIZING THE TAX 
 
 WHEREAS, the voter-approved local option taxes are subject to the General Government 
Limitation; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Stayton must indicate such in its levy Resolution; 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Stayton City Council hereby levies the taxes 
provided for in the adopted budget at the permanent rate of $3.328 per $1,000 of property value 
and that these taxes are levied upon the assessed value at 1:00 a.m., January 1, 2013, and at the 
rate of $0.60 per $1,000 of property value for local option tax on all taxable property within the 
City of Stayton.  The following allocation and categorization, subject to the limits of Section 
11b., Article XI of the Oregon Constitution, make up the aggregate levy rate: 
 

  
Subject to the  

General Government Limitation 

 
Excluded from 
the Limitation 

General Fund   
 
Local Option Tax 
(approved May 15, 2012)   

$3.328/$1,000 
 

$0.60/$1,000 

 
 
 

 
 
APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this 3rd day of June, 2013. 
 
 
Date:                                                      By:                                                                                

A. Scott Vigil, Mayor 
    
 
Date:                                                      Attest:                                                                           

Don Eubank, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
        
  
___________________________                                                     
David A. Rhoten, City Attorney  
 
 
 
 





























































































































 
RCA - Phillips Estates Development Agreement  Page 1 of 5 

 
 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
  

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
 

TO:   Mayor Scott Vigil and City Councilors 
 
THRU:  Don Eubank, City Administrator 
 
FROM:  David W. Kinney, Public Works Director 
   Dan Fleishman, Planning and Development Director 
 
DATE:  June 3, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:  Development Agreement – Phillips Estate Subdivision 
   “Developer-City Construction Agreement” 
 
 
 
ISSUE 
 
Shall the City approve a Development Agreement with JCNW Family LLC for the 

construction of public improvements within Phase II of the Phillips Estates Subdivision?  
 
ENCLOSURES 
 

1. Developer-City Construction Agreement signed on May 21, 2013 by Bill Martinak, 
Managing Member, JCNW Family LLC. 

 
2. Phillips Estates Subdivision Map showing Phases I, II and III.   

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
In 2006, the Stayton Planning Commission granted approval to JCNW Family LLC for the 72-lot 
Phillips Estate Subdivision.   The project is located west of Kindle Way and north of Shaff Rd. and 
the existing Quail Run development.   Phase I (20 lots) was constructed in 2008, but Phases II & 
III (52 lots) were delayed pending resolution of four unresolved issues:  (1) annexation, (2) 
wetlands conditions of approval, (3) public improvement requirements and (4) negotiation of a 
development agreement between the City of Stayton and the property owner. 
 
   1. Annexation.    Voters approved annexation of the property in November 2012.    

 



 
RCA - Phillips Estates Development Agreement   Page 2 of 5 

  

 
 2. Conditions of Approval.    On April 29, 2013 the Planning Commission modified the 

conditions of approval to remove a requirement that on-site wetlands be excluded from 
the development.  This change was consistent with a 2007 Development Code 
amendment and allows Phases II and III of the subdivision to be constructed as 
originally designed and approved.  The Developer will complete wetland mitigation 
measures under a permit issued by the State of Oregon, Department of State Lands 
(DSL).  

 
 3. Public Improvement Requirements.    The 2008 engineering plans were approved for 

Phase I only.   Phase II & Phase III construction plans were not approved at that time.  
The Development Agreement addresses the Phase II improvements and anticipates 
Phase III improvements. 

 
  When the project was originally approved, the housing market was strong and the City 

& Developer anticipated the Phillips Estate subdivision would be built out quickly.  
The City expected there would be a strong demand for growth and expansion of the 
Stayton UGB to the north.   As a result, the subdivision improvements were designed 
with a new storm sewer system and sanitary system flowing to the north.   The City 
public works staff expected other property owners north of Shaff Road would desire to 
annex to the City and access a new sewer line running north to the Mill Creek sewer 
line.  At the same time that the Phillips Estates subdivision was approved by the 
Planning Commission, there was an application for annexation and subdivision pending 
on the 27 acres to the east.  The recession halted residential growth and required both 
parties to reconsider the timing and extent of the improvements which are needed for 
the balance of the development. 

 
  Title 13 of the City Code allows the City to require a developer to install public 

improvements of a larger size than is needed so serve the specific development in order 
to implement the City’s master plans and to serve subsequent development of nearby 
properties.  When the City requires larger facilities, the City is responsible for 
reimbursing the developer for the cost of “over sizing” the public improvement.   

 
  Over the past five years, the Planning/Public Works staff and Developer have had 

extensive discussions on the scope of public improvements that must be built with 
Phases II and III of the development.   The “Development Agreement” incorporates 
several design changes and modifications to the original public improvement proposals.  
These agreements were reached after 6 months of negotiation between the parties.   

 
 A. Water Improvements.   The Developer will install water lines in the project.  An 

oversized 10” water line is required in Junco Street to comply with the Water 

Facilities Master Plan.    The City will pay for the over sizing of water mains 
from 8” to 10” in size in Phase II.   The City’s share is $18,200.    

 
 B. Sewer Improvements.   The Developer will redesign and install sanitary sewer 

lines to serve lots in Phase II at the developer’s sole cost and expense.     
 



 
RCA - Phillips Estates Development Agreement  Page 3 of 5 

 The City has agreed to allow a few individual lot grinder pumps to serve low 
elevation lots.  The biggest design change is the elimination of a 2000’ off-site 
sewer line extending outside the City limits to the Mill Creek Sewer Trunk line to 
the northwest.  This sewer line will not be constructed. 

 
 C. Streets.    The Developer will construct all street improvement within the 

subdivision at the developer’s sole cost and expense.   The Developer will provide 
the City with a $19,840 credit for not building the ¾ width street that is typically 
required of a new subdivision.   

 
 The City has agreed to allow the construction of Junco Street along the north 

subdivision boundary as a seventeen (17’) wide one-half street improvement 
instead of a twenty-four (24’) wide ¾ street improvement.   When the property to 
the north is annexed to the City and subdivided it will be required to dedicate the 
needed right-of-way and construct the remaining seventeen (17’) wide half-street 
to create a full-width thirty-four (34’) wide collector street.       

 
  D. Storm Sewer Improvements:    The Developer will install storm sewers and an on-

site detention/retention basin as part of Phase II.  Oversized 30” storm sewers are 
required to comply with the Storm Water Master Plan.   The City will pay for 
the over sizing of storm sewers within Phase II.   The City’s share is $34,905. 

 
4. Development Agreement.   This Agreement addresses Phase II, and Tract “A” to be 

created for a future Phase III.   A separate agreement for Phase III will be required 
when it is ready to proceed. 

 

PROJECT COST ESTIMATES 
 
In order to arrive at an agreement, the City and Developer needed to agree on the estimated cost of 
construction and calculate the city share for over sizing of the required improvements.   Westech 
Engineering and Emery & Sons Construction prepared an estimate and submitted the cost estimate 
to the City.   City Engineer John Ashley and Sr. Engineering Technician Mike Brash reviewed the 
estimates.  In order to verify costs, we requested another General Contractor provide an 
independent review of the unit prices.    Modifications were made by John Ashley and these were 
incorporated.   Exhibits “A”, “B” and “C” provide the agreed upon cost estimates. 
 

Project Costs City of Stayton  

(A)   Water Main Over sizing 
          8” to 10” Water Main – Junco Street Bid 

18,200 

(B)    Streets:    Junco Street   
          Credit to City for ½ street construction 

(19,840) 

(C)    Storm Sewer Over sizing 34,905 

NET COST TO CITY (After Credit Deduction) $ 33,265 

 
 



 
RCA - Phillips Estates Development Agreement   Page 4 of 5 

  

FISCAL ISSUES 
 
The staff has included funds in the FY 2013-2014 Budget to pay for the City’s share of the project. 
 

Water   The Water Systems Development Charge (SDC) Fund will pay for the over 
sizing.   The payments are consistent with SMC Chapter 13. 

 
Street  The Junco Street Credit will be assigned to the Street SDC Fund because 

Junco Street is an eligible collector street listed in the Stayton 

Transportation System Plan.  
 
Storm Sewer The Sewer SDC Fund will provide a loan to pay for the storm sewer over 

sizing.   It will need to be paid back when the City adopts a Storm Sewer 
SDC.  The payments are consistent with SMC Chapter 13. 

 
Once the Development Agreement is approved, the City Council will need to address several 
associated financial policy issues in next two months. 
  

Issue #1: Mill Creek Sewer Assessment.    When the City constructed the Mill Creek 
Pump Station and Mill Creek Sewer Trunk Line in 2005, the City Council 
was informed that the partial cost of this project would be paid for by “new 
construction” which flows into the trunk line.  An $800 per unit charge was 
proposed, but never adopted by the City Council.   Staff recommends this be 
adopted.   Every new home in the Phillips Estate Subdivision would pay this 
fee at the time building permits are issued. 

 
Issue #2: Storm Drainage SDC.    The Storm Water Master Plan recommends the City 

adopt a storm sewer systems development charge.   This was not adopted in 
2009 when the City approved the master plan.  Staff recommends the City 
Council proceed with the preparation and adoption of a Storm Drainage 
SDC.    

 
Staff will return to the City Council with the appropriate resolutions to establish these fees. 

   

 
DEVELOPER’S CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE 
 
Bill Martinak has signed the Development Agreement on behalf of JCNW Family LLC.  
 
He is ready to have Westech Engineering complete the final design of the subdivision 
improvements and construct the Phase II improvements in summer and early fall 2013.   He is 
anxious to begin construction.  Mr. Martinak has informed the City that he has a builder ready to 
construct new homes in the balance of Phase I during summer 2013 and will begin Phase II as 
soon as the public improvements are completed.  

 



 
RCA - Phillips Estates Development Agreement  Page 5 of 5 

RECOMMENDATION   
 
The City and Developer have spent five years discussing and the past six months actively 
negotiating this Agreement.    Legal counsel Wallace Lien has made final amendments to the 
Agreement and reviewed them with JCNW Family LLC’s attorney Steven Morasch.   Mr. 
Martinak signed the agreement on May 21, 2013. 
 
The City staff, including legal counsel Wallace Lien, recommend the City Council approve the 
Development Agreement for Phase II of the Phillips Estates Subdivision. 

 
 
OPTIONS 
 
The Planning Commission’s conditions of approval for the Phillips Estate Subdivision require the 
City and Developer to enter into a Development Agreement that describes the public 
improvements to be constructed in the subdivision and set forth any city reimbursement for 
oversizing of the public improvements.  The Agreement requires approval by the City Council.  
The Council has several options: 
 
 A. Approve the Developer-City Construction Agreement for Phase II of the Phillips 

Estate Subdivision. 
 
 B. Table the issue and reconsider at the June 17, 2013 meeting.  Provide staff with 

specific direction or issues to be addressed. 
 
 C. Reject the draft Agreement and direct the City Administrator to renegotiate the 

Agreement with the Developer. 

 
 
MOTIONS 
  

Approval:  Offer a motion to approve the Developer-City Construction Agreement with 
JCNW Family LLC for Phase II of the Phillips Estate Subdivision as 
presented. 

 
Table Issue: Offer a motion to table the issue until the June 18, 2013 City Council 

meeting and direct staff to address the following issues: (provide direction) 
 
Reject:  Offer a motion to reject the proposed Agreement and direct staff to 

renegotiate the Agreement with the Developer (provide direction on issues 
to be addressed in the renegotiation).  

 

 




























